
 Page 1 
 

AGENDA 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

March 3, 2022 | 7:00 PM  
Council Chambers | Video Conference 

City Hall | 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas 
 

 
Notice is hereby given that a meeting of the Lucas City Council will be held on Thursday, March 3, 2022, beginning at 
7:00 pm at Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas 75002-7651 and by video conference, at which time 
the following agenda will be discussed. As authorized by Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code, the City 
Council may convene into closed Executive Session for the purpose of seeking confidential legal advice from the City 
Attorney on any item on the agenda at any time during the meeting. 
 
To join the meeting, please click this URL: 
https://us06web.zoom.us/s/81923044914?pwd=V2QvTk5pK25nTUR3bW0yeFRnR2RUdz09 
and enter your name and email address  
Join by phone: 1-346-248-7799  
Webinar ID: 819 2304 4914 
Passcode: 626177 
 
If you would like to watch the meeting live, and not participate via Zoom, you may go to the 
City’s live streaming link at https://www.lucastexas.us/live-streaming-videos/. 
 
How to Provide Input at a Meeting:  
 
Speak In Person: Request to Speak forms will be available at the meeting. Please fill out the 
form and give to the City Secretary prior to the start of the meeting. This form will also allow a 
place for comments.  
 
Speak Remotely Via Zoom: If you would like to attend a meeting remotely and speak via 
Zoom, email the City Secretary at shenderson@lucastexas.us by 4:00 pm noting the item you 
wish to speak on and noting your attendance will be remote. Please note, any requests received 
after 4:00 pm will not be included at the meeting.  
 
Submit Written Comments: If you are unable to attend a meeting and would like to submit 
written comments regarding a specific agenda item, email the City Secretary at 
shenderson@lucastexas.us by no later than 4:00 pm the day of the meeting. The email must 
contain the person’s name, address, phone number, and the agenda item(s) for which comments 
will be made. Any requests received after 4:00 pm will not be included at the meeting. 
 
Call to Order  
 
• Roll Call 
• Determination of Quorum 
• Reminder to turn off or silence cell phones 
• Pledge of Allegiance 

https://us06web.zoom.us/s/81923044914?pwd=V2QvTk5pK25nTUR3bW0yeFRnR2RUdz09
https://www.lucastexas.us/live-streaming-videos/
mailto:shenderson@lucastexas.us
mailto:shenderson@lucastexas.us


 Page 2 
 

Citizen Input 
 
1. Citizen Input 
 
Community Interest 
Pursuant to Section 5510415 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council may report on the following items: 
1) expression of thanks, congratulations or condolences; 2) information about holiday schedules; 3) recognition of 
individuals; 4) reminders about upcoming City Council events; 5) information about community events; and 6) 
announcements involving imminent threat to public health and safety. 
 
2. Items of Community Interest: 
 

A. Presentation of Proclamation to Lovejoy Independent School District for their 
partnership during the City of Lucas Country Christmas event.  

 
B. Presentation of Proclamation to In-N-Out Burger for their in-kind donation during 

the City of Lucas Country Christmas event.  

Consent Agenda 
All items listed under the consent agenda are considered routine and are recommended to the City Council for a 
single vote approval. If discussion is desired, an item may be removed from the consent agenda for a separate vote. 
 
3. Consent Agenda:  
 

A. Approval of the minutes of the February 17, 2022, City Council meeting. (City 
Secretary Stacy Henderson) 
 

B. Approval of Ordinance 2022-03-00946 declaring unopposed candidates in the 
May 7, 2022, City of Lucas General Election to be elected to office, cancelling 
the May 7, 2022, General Election and providing an effective date. (City Secretary 
Stacy Henderson) 

 
Regular Agenda 
 
4. Consider approval of an application for a site plan, landscape plan, elevations, and 

preliminary plat submitted by the property owner Bill Shipley on behalf of Golden Chick 
for use as a commercial restaurant on a 0.833-acre tract of land in the William Snider 
Survey, Abstract Number 821, situated in the City of Lucas, located at 451 South Angel 
Parkway. (Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn) 

 
5. Consider authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and enter into a Development 

Agreement with James Irwin for roadway improvements to the first 1,284 feet of 
Stinson Road south of West Lucas Road and appropriating funds in an amount not to 
exceed $596,577.62 (95% of $627,976.45 - the cost of the roadway improvements) 
from cash account 11-1009 General Fund Roadway Impact Fees in the amount of 
$44,000 and the remainder $552,577.62 from General Fund Reserves to account 21-
8210-491-325 Stinson Road Realignment. (Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn) 

  



 Page 3 
 

6. Consider approval of proposed edits recommended by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission to Chapters 4 and 5 of the City of Lucas Comprehensive Plan and 
provide direction to staff regarding any additional amendments. (Development Services 
Director Joe Hilbourn) 

 
7. Consider changing the start time of City Council meetings from 7:00 pm to 6:00 pm and 

setting a date to begin the new schedule. (Mayor Jim Olk) 
 
Executive Agenda 
 
8. Executive Session. 
 

Pursuant to Section 551.074 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council will 
convene into Executive Session to discuss the evaluation for the City Manager. 

 
9. Reconvene from Executive Session and take any action necessary as a result of the 

Executive Session. 

10. Adjournment. 
 
Certification 
I do hereby certify that the above notice was posted in accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act on the 
bulletin board at Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, TX 75002 and on the City’s website at 
www.lucastexas.us on or before 5:00 p.m. on February 25, 2022. 
 

_______________________________________ 
Stacy Henderson, City Secretary  

 
In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the City of Lucas will provide for reasonable accommodations for 
persons attending public meetings at City Hall. Requests for accommodations or interpretive services should be directed to 
City Secretary Stacy Henderson at 972.912.1211 or by email at shenderson@lucastexas.us at least 48 hours prior to the 
meeting. 

http://www.lucastexas.us/
mailto:shenderson@lucastexas.us


Item No. 01 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

March 3, 2022 
 

Requester: Mayor Jim Olk  
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Citizen Input  
 
Background Information  
 
NA 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
NA 
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation  
  
NA 
 
Motion  
 
NA 



Item No. 02 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

March 3, 2022 
 

 
 
Requester: Mayor Jim Olk 
   
Agenda Item Request  
 
2. Items of Community Interest:  
 

A. Presentation of Proclamation to Lovejoy Independent School District for their 
partnership during the City of Lucas Country Christmas event.  

 
B. Presentation of Proclamation to In-N-Out Burger for their in-kind donation during 

the City of Lucas Country Christmas event.  
 
Background Information  
 
NA 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
1. Proclamations 
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation  
 
NA 
 
Motion  
 
NA 
 
 



 
 

Proclamation 
Lovejoy Independent School District 

 
WHEREAS, Lovejoy Independent School District provided shuttle drivers, buses, and parking for 
the Lucas community during the City-sponsored Country Christmas event; and 
 
WHEREAS, December 3, 2021, marks the day in which Lovejoy Independent School District 
provided shuttle drivers and buses to transport numerous attendees between Country Christmas, Joe 
V. Hart Elementary School, and Willow Springs Middle School; and because of the District’s 
community partnership, provided larger shuttle buses to accommodate the substantial increase of 
attendees during the event; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City would like to thank the Routing Coordinator and Shuttle Drivers of Lovejoy 
Independent School District who provided exceptional shuttle services during Country Christmas: 
Donna Holden, Mun Leininger, Jeff Allbritten, Yasumi Ingram, Cristi Hudson, Alex Ingram, and 
Henry Trail. The staff of Lovejoy Independent School District are dedicated to providing a safe, 
friendly, and outstanding transportation service for the Lucas community; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Lucas Mayor, City Council, City staff, and members of the community are 
appreciative and thankful to Lovejoy Independent School District for their partnership at Country 
Christmas and future events; and 
 
NOW THEREFORE, in recognition of their generosity and commitment to their organizational 
values to community service and extreme generosity, I, Jim Olk, Mayor of the City of Lucas 
recognize Lovejoy Independent School District as an official community partner with the City of 
Lucas. 
 
PROCLAIMED this day 3rd day of March 2022.  

  
 

___________________________   ____________________________ 
Jim Olk, Mayor        Stacy Henderson, City Secretary 



 
 

Proclamation 
In-N-Out Burger  

 
WHEREAS, In-N-Out Burger contributed an in-kind donation for the Lucas community by 
participating in the City-sponsored Country Christmas event; and 
 
WHEREAS, December 3, 2021, marks the day in which In-N-Out Burger provided 1,000 free 
meals to visitors attending the Lucas Country Christmas event, and because of In-N-Out Burger’s 
immense generosity, provided an additional 300 meals exceeding the requested amount: and  
 
WHEREAS, In-N-Out Burger, was declared the official burger of the City of Lucas on January 16, 
2020; and 
 
WHEREAS, continuing in their generosity, In-N-Out Burger has offered to provide an in-kind 
donation of 1,000 meals for the City of Lucas Founders Day event scheduled for May 14, 2022; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City would like to thank the In-N-Out Burger Texas Cookout Team who planned, 
prepared and provided meals to the public at Country Christmas: Julio Reyes, Angelica Arroyo, Isai 
Escudero, Nicholas Nguyen, Jonathan Nguyen, Jorge De La Torre, Lina Gonzalez, Simon Zavala, 
Daira Prado, Dahlia Barrera, and Andy Zavala. The staff and volunteers of In-N-Out Burger are 
dedicated to upholding the highest standards of community service, donating their time and efforts 
to making a difference in the lives of others. 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Lucas Mayor, City Council, City staff, and members of the community are 
appreciative and thankful to In-N-Out Burger for their generosity and donation of meals at Country 
Christmas and future events; and 
 
NOW THEREFORE, in recognition of their generosity and commitment to their organizational 
values to community service and extreme generosity, I, Jim Olk, Mayor of the City of Lucas 
recognize In-N-Out Burger as an official community partner with the City of Lucas. 
 
PROCLAIMED this day 3rd day of March 2022.  

  
 

___________________________   ____________________________ 
Jim Olk, Mayor        Stacy Henderson, City Secretary 



Item No. 03 
 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

March 3, 2022 
 

 Requester: City Secretary Stacy Henderson    
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Consent Agenda:  
 
A. Approval of the minutes of the February 17, 2022, City Council meeting. 

 
B. Approval of Ordinance 2022-03-00946 declaring unopposed candidates in the May 7, 

2022, City of Lucas General Election to be elected to office, cancelling the May 7, 2022, 
General Election and providing an effective date.  

 
Background Information  
 
NA 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
1. Minutes of the February 17, 2022, City Council meeting 
2. Ordinance 2022-03-00946 Declaring Candidates and Cancelling the General Election  
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation  
 
City Staff recommends approval of the Consent Agenda. 
 
Motion  
 
I make a motion to approve/deny the Consent Agenda as presented. 
 



1 | P a g e   C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g  
  F e b r u a r y  1 7 ,  2 0 2 2  

MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

February 17, 2022 | 6:00 PM  
Council Chambers | Video Conference 

City Hall | 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas 
 

 
City Councilmembers Present: 
Mayor Jim Olk  
Mayor Pro Tem Kathleen Peele 
Councilmember Tim Johnson (arrived at 6:12 pm)  
Councilmember Tim Baney 
Councilmember David Keer  
Councilmember Phil Lawrence (attending remotely)  
Councilmember Debbie Fisher 

City Staff Present: 
City Manager Joni Clarke  
City Secretary Stacy Henderson  
City Attorney Joe Gorfida 
Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn  
Public Works Director Scott Holden  
Finance Director Liz Exum  
 
 

 
The regular City Council meeting was called to order at 6:00 pm.  
 
Citizen Input 
 
1. Citizen Input 
 
There was no citizen input at this meeting.  
 
Community Interest 
 
2. Items of Community Interest 
 
Mayor Olk spoke regarding the upcoming farmers market, TxDOT meeting regarding Country Club 
widening, and the upcoming Spring Cleanup event.  Councilmember Fisher discussed the new 
privacy screens added for voting in the Community Center.  

Consent Agenda 
 
3. Consent Agenda:  
 

A. Approval of the minutes of the January 20, 2022, City Council meeting.  
 
B. Approval of Ordinance 2022-02-00943 ordering a general election to be held on May 

7, 2022, for the purpose of electing two (2) City Councilmembers for Seat No. 5 and 
Seat No. 6; designating location of polling place; ordering notice of election to be 
given as prescribed by law in connection with such election; authorizing execution of 
joint election agreement; and providing for an effective date.  

 
C. Approval of the City of Lucas Quarterly Investment Report ended December 2021.   
 



2 | P a g e   C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g  
  F e b r u a r y  1 7 ,  2 0 2 2  

D. Authorize the Mayor to enter into a Second Amended and Restated Agreement for 
Municipal Court Judge commencing February 3, 2022, through February 1, 2023, 
with an option to renew for an additional term of two (2) years.  

 
E. Approval of Ordinance 2022-02-00944 amending the Lucas Code of Ordinances 

by amending Chapter 3 titled “Building Regulations” amending Article 3.01 titled 
“General Provisions” amending Section 3.01.005 titled “Building Permit” adding 
a new paragraph (d) titled “Starting Without A Permit” to require that the permit 
fee be doubled where work is started prior to obtaining a permit; and providing 
for an effective date.  

 
F. Rescind City Council Approval for Alternative Number 2, long term scour 

protection in the amount of $32,000 for the Winningkoff Bridge.  
 

MOTION: A motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Peele, seconded by Councilmember Fisher 
to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.  The motion passed unanimously by a 
6 to 0 vote. 

 
Regular Agenda 
 
4. Presentation to the City of Lucas Finance Department for receiving the 2021 

Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting Award from the 
Government Finance Officers Association.   

 
Mayor Olk presented the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to 
Finance Director Liz Exum.  
 
5. Consider the request by Todd Winters on behalf of Barrett Owens for approval of a 

preliminary plat for an 18.858-acre parcel of land being part of the Jas Grayum 
Survey, Abstract 354 located on the north side of Estates Parkway and east of 
Orchard Road, at 1900 Estates Parkway more commonly known as Farmstead Phase 
Two.  

 
Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn gave a presentation discussing elements of the 
preliminary plat request.   
 
The City Council discussed the water flow on the property and how that would be addressed 
through the platting and construction process.  
 
The following individuals requested to speak:  
 
• Jim Iannucci, 9 Kingswood Drive, noted his opposition to the new development and asked how 

water flow would be reduced from the property.  
• Bill Gunn, 3 Kingswood Drive, discussed his concerns regarding drainage from the property and 

the surrounding areas.  
• Jeff Maddox, 12 Kingswood, asked questions about the survey, as-builts and to review drainage 

plans when they became available.  
• Randy Cimprich, 14 Kingswood, discussed the need to ensure requirements were being met and 

did not adversely affect other neighborhoods.  
 



3 | P a g e   C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g  
  F e b r u a r y  1 7 ,  2 0 2 2  

• Barrett Owens, 390 West Forest Grove, owners of Farmstead Phase 1 and 2 discussed the plans 
to mitigate the runoff, meeting requirements above what was required, and creating an outfall 
structure to assist with drainage in the area.  

 
MOTION: A motion was made by Councilmember Fisher, seconded by Councilmember Baney 

to approve the preliminary plat with the condition that the developer deliver all 
drainage plans to City staff prior to final plat submittal, and that the preliminary plat 
be approved conditionally because it does not meet the following requirements of 
the City’s Code of Ordinances outlined below.  The motion passed unanimously by a 
7 to 0 vote.  

 
• Section 10.03.032 Submission Dates;  
• Section 10.03.033 Official Filing Date;  
• Section 10.03.034 General Approval Criteria;  
• Section 10.03.039(3) Standards for Approval of Preliminary Plats;  
• Section 10.03.040(b)(1) Data Requirement for Preliminary Plats;  
• Section 10.04.020 Preliminary Plats 

 
6. Consider authorizing the City Manager to enter into a professional services 

agreement with Birkhoff, Hendricks, & Carter, LLP (BH&C) and appropriate funds 
from Unrestricted General Fund Reserves to account 11-8209-303 Drainage in the 
amount of $108,020 to complete the design, construction plans, specifications, and 
bidding for the following:  

 
A. Rimrock Detention Pond Embankment Improvements in the amount of $23,280  

(Recommendation 4) 
B. Orchard South Culvert Improvements & Channel Improvements in the amount of 

$32,450 (Recommendation 5) 
C. Lynn Lane Culvert and Channel Improvements in the amount of $52,290  

(Recommendation 6) 
 
Councilmember Lawrence recused himself from this item and turned off his video and microphone.  
 
Public Works Director Scott Holden discussed the proposed recommendations made by Birkhoff, 
Hendricks & Carter.  
 
The following individuals requested to speak: 
 
• Jim Iannucci, 9 Kingswood, discussed the drainage reports submitted and suggested the report 

focus on day-to-day drainage details rather than 100-year flood plain drainage. 
• Jeff Maddox, 12 Kingswood, asked if options had been considered such as adding piping behind 

homes to improve water flow.  
• Bill Gunn, 3 Kingswood, would like to see elevations related to TxDOT roadways and was 

concerned about drainage on the north side of Estates.  
• Wayne Millsap, 318 McMillan, expressed his concern as to how the City was going to pay for 

drainage problems in this area and throughout the City.  
• David Booker, 10 Kingswood, expressed his concern regarding findings ways to ensure drainage 

was working properly.  
 



4 | P a g e   C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g  
  F e b r u a r y  1 7 ,  2 0 2 2  

• Brad Livingstone, 9 Orchard, discussed his concerns that the berm and detention pond at Lovejoy 
High School was not holding water after a rainfall, and not functioning properly.  

 
Public Works Director Scott Holden discussed his meeting with TxDOT and noted the following 
items TxDOT conveyed:  

1- Estates Parkway was five feet above the Lemontree/Kingswood subdivision  
2- Culverts on the south side of Estates Parkway were undersized and would not carry additional 

runoff 
3- To divert drainage towards Estates, a drainage study would be required and submitted to 

TxDOT but did not guarantee it will be approved or completed.   
 
Joe Carter, with Birkhoff, Hendricks & Carter answered questions that had been raised during 
citizen participation. He reviewed design proposals, rainfall events, water flow based on design 
criteria, and how the recommended improvements would affect drainage.  
 
City Council noted that discussions would take place with TxDOT as part of the Country Club 
widening to determine if drainage improvements could be made along Estates Parkway at the 
Country Club intersection to assist with drainage, and therefore would not move forward with 
Option C, Lynn Lane improvements until further discussions took place with TxDOT.  
 
MOTION: A motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Peele seconded by Councilmember Keer to 

approve authorizing the City Manager to enter into a professional services agreement 
with Birkhoff, Hendricks, & Carter, LLP and appropriate funds from Unrestricted 
General Fund Reserves to account 11-8209-303 Drainage in the amount of $55,730 
to complete the design, construction plans, specifications, and bidding for: 1) 
Rimrock Detention Pond Embankment Improvements in the amount of $23,280; 
and 2) Orchard South Culvert Improvements and Channel Improvements in the 
amount of $32,450. The motion passed unanimously by a 6 to 0 vote, as 
Councilmember Lawrence was recused from voting on this agenda item.  

 
The City Council recessed for a break at 8:14 pm and reconvened the meeting at 8:26 pm.  
 
7. Consider adopting Ordinance 2022-02-00945 amending the City’s Code of 

Ordinances, Chapter 14 “Zoning”, Article 14.01.004 “Definitions” by amending the 
definition of home occupation and providing an effective date.  

 
The City Council discussed the current requirements of home occupation in the City’s Code of 
Ordinances, enforcement of current regulations, and proposed new regulations that included the 
following:  
 

(a) Home occupation shall not create a nuisance to persons of ordinary sensibilities that occupy 
the surrounding property such as offensive noises, vibrations, sound, smoke dust, odors, 
heat, glare, x-rays or electrical disturbances to radio and telephone instruments. 

(b) There shall be no traffic generated by the home occupation in greater volumes than normally 
expected in a residential neighborhood. 

 
Wayne Millsap, 318 McMillan, requested that accessory buildings be included in the amended 
definition, and was opposed to requiring that businesses must include members of the family 
only.  
 
 



5 | P a g e   C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g  
  F e b r u a r y  1 7 ,  2 0 2 2  

MOTION: A motion was made by Councilmember Fisher, seconded by Councilmember 
Lawrence to send the home occupation ordinance to the Planning and Zoning 
Commission for review, including items (a) and (b) above as well as the inclusion 
of accessory buildings as part of the definition. The motion passed unanimously 
by a 7 to 0 vote.  

 
8. Consider approval of proposed edits recommended by the Planning and Zoning 

Commission to Chapters 1, 2, and 3 of the City of Lucas Comprehensive Plan and 
provide direction to staff regarding any additional amendments.  

 
The City Council discussed proposed updates to Chapters 1, 2 and 3. Under Chapter 3, Housing 
Actions, it was suggested that other structures needing rehabilitation such as fences, antenna 
towers, and accessory structures be added to the Comprehensive Plan in an appropriate location.  
 
The City Council was in favor of moving forward with the proposed edits of Chapters 1, 2 and 3 
of the Comprehensive Plan.  
 
9. Consider nominations for 2022 Service Tree Awards.  
 
The Service Tree Subcommittee consisting of Councilmember Fisher, Councilmember Keer and 
Councilmember Johnson, recommended to the City Council the following individuals be nominated 
for 2022 Service Tree Awards.  
 

• Tammy Duke 
• Gary Johnson 

 
Because Mr. Johnson lived in the City’s ETJ, the Council was in agreement to make Gary Johnson 
an honorary citizen of Lucas.   
 
MOTION: A motion was made by Councilmember Fisher, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Peele 

to award Tammy Duke and Gary Johnson as Service Tree Recipients for 2022. The 
motion passed unanimously by a 7 to 0 vote.  

 
Executive Session Agenda 
 
10. Executive Session: 
 
An Executive Session was not held at this meeting. 
 
11. Reconvene from Executive Session and take any action necessary as a result of the 

Executive Session. 
 
There was no Executive Session held at this meeting; therefore, no action was taken.  
 
  



6 | P a g e   C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g  
  F e b r u a r y  1 7 ,  2 0 2 2  

12. Adjournment. 
 
MOTION: A motion was made by Councilmember Johnson seconded by Mayor Olk to adjourn 

the meeting at 9:22 pm. The motion passed unanimously by a 7 to 0 vote.  
 

APPROVED:       ATTEST: 
 
 
              
Mayor Jim Olk       City Secretary Stacy Henderson 



 
CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS 
Ordinance 2022-03-00946 – Declaring Candidates Elected, Cancelling General Election  
Approved: March 3, 2022  Page 1 

ORDINANCE 2022-03-00946 
[Declaring Unopposed Candidates and  

Cancelling the May 7, 2022, General Election] 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUCAS, COLLIN COUNTY, 
TEXAS, DECLARING THE UNOPPOSED CANDIDATES IN THE MAY 7, 2022, GENERAL 
ELECTION TO BE ELECTED TO OFFICE; CANCELLING THE MAY 7, 2022, GENERAL 
ELECTION; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
WHEREAS, on February 17, 2022, the City of Lucas General Election was ordered by the Lucas 
City Council to be held on May 7, 2022, for the purpose of electing two (2) Lucas City 
Councilmembers for Seat No. 5 and Seat No. 6. 
 
WHEREAS, the City Secretary has certified in writing that no person has made a declaration of 
write-in candidacy, that each candidate on the ballot for office is unopposed for this election, and the 
deadlines for filing an application for a place on the ballot and declaration for a write in candidate 
for the City’s General Election have expired.  
 
WHEREAS, Chapter 2, Subchapter C, Section 2.053 of the Texas Election Code authorizes the City 
Council to declare the candidates elected and cancellation of the General Election.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LUCAS COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
SECTION 1. The following candidates, who are unopposed in the May 7, 2022, General Election, are 
declared elected to office, and shall be issued Certificates of Election following the time the election 
would have been canvassed.  
  

Office    Candidate  
City Council Seat 5  Debbie Fisher  
City Council Seat 6  Kathleen A. Peele  

 
SECTION 2.  The May 7, 2022, General Election is cancelled, and the City Secretary is hereby 
directed to cause a copy of this ordinance to be posted on Election Day at the polling location 
designated by Ordinance 2022-02-00943, the Lucas Community Center, located at 665 Country Club 
Road, Lucas, Texas.  
 
SECTION 3.  This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon its passage.  
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Lucas this 3rd day of March 
2022. 
      __________________________________________ 
      Jim Olk, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM:  
 
__________________________________ __________________________________________ 
Stacy Henderson, City Secretary   Joseph J. Gorfida, Jr., City Attorney  



 
 

CERTIFICATION OF UNOPPOSED CANDIDATES FOR  
CITY OF LUCAS  

 
 
 
To: Mayor Olk  
 
As the authority responsible for having the official ballot prepared, I hereby certify that  
the following candidates are unopposed for election to office for the City of Lucas May 7, 2022 
general election.  
 
Offices and names of candidates:  
 
Office/Seat     Candidate 
City Council Seat 5   Debbie Fisher  
City Council Seat 6   Kathleen A. Peele  
 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________________________   
Stacy Henderson, TRMC 
City Secretary, City of Lucas  
 
March 3, 2022  
________________________________________________________________________   
Date 
 
 



Item No. 04 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

March 3, 2022 
 

Requester: Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn 
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Consider approval of an application for a site plan, landscape plan, elevations, and preliminary 
plat submitted by the property owner Bill Shipley on behalf of Golden Chick for use as a 
commercial restaurant on a 0.833-acre tract of land in the William Snider Survey, Abstract 
Number 821, situated in the City of Lucas, located at 451 South Angel Parkway.  
 
Background Information  
 
Site Plan: 
Golden Chick is proposing 1,914 square feet of restaurant space. The site is currently zoned 
Commercial Business, the use fits with surrounding uses in the area, and the following elements 
of the site plan are outlined below:  
 

• Impervious coverage is 57% (a maximum of 65% is permitted) 
• Parking spaces required is 20 (21 are proposed) 
• Site stormwater runoff detention is accounted for and shown on the site plan 
• All drainage is dedicated as a drainage easement for protection 
• The site meets the City’s lighting requirements, and a photometric plan has been provided 

 
Landscape Plan: 
The following elements of the landscape plan are outlined below:  
 

• Total site area is 36,235 square feet and the building footprint is 1,914 square feet 
• Total landscape area is 14,188 square feet; 15% is required and 39.16% is proposed 
• Street trees required is six (five are provided, variance requested because of utility 

limitations) 
• Street shrubs required is 48 (76 are provided) 
• Parking perimeter trees required is six (six are provided) 
• Parking perimeter shrubs required is 48 (51 are provided) 
• Parking interior total site area is 16,304 square feet; landscape area required is 815 square 

feet (5%) and landscape area provided is 1,776 square feet (10.9%) 
• Trees required is 12 (13 are provided) 
• Shade trees required is 2.5 (3 are provided) 

Irrigation is required for all provided landscape elements; the irrigation plan meets the 
requirements for compliance.   
 



Item No. 04 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

March 3, 2022 
 

Architectural Plan: 
The following elements of the architectural plan are outlined below:  
 

• Proposed building height is 22 feet, 7 inches tall; maximum permitted is 35 feet tall 
• Building has 100% masonry 
• The building is 69.06 feet wide x 36.71 feet in length 

 
House Bill 2439 no longer permits cities to restrict building materials that are permitted by a 
model code. The building materials proposed comply with the requirements in the 2015 
International Building Code.  
 
Preliminary Plat: 
The lot is 0.833 acres of land. The plat provides easements for drainage including detention, 
utility easements, and easements for fire lanes. The plat meets the City’s requirements for a plat.  
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 

1. Site Plan, Application, and Checklist 
2. Landscape Plan and Checklist 
3. Elevations (Color Elevations, Dumpster Detail, Façade & Signage) and Checklist 
4. Preliminary Plat 
5. Photometric Plan 
6. Location Map  

 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation   
 
Staff recommends approving the site plan, landscape plan, elevations, and preliminary plat. The 
Planning and Zoning Commission unanimously recommended approval of the site plan, 
landscape plan, elevations, and preliminary plat as submitted. 
 
Motion  
 
I make a motion to approve/deny an application for a site plan, landscape plan, elevations, and 
preliminary plat submitted by the property owner Bill Shipley on behalf of Golden Chick for use 
as a commercial restaurant on a 0.833-acre tract of land in the William Snider Survey, Abstract 
Number 821, situated in the City of Lucas, located at 451 South Angel Parkway. 







































Item No. 05 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

March 3, 2022 

Requester: Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn  
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Consider authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and enter into a Development Agreement 
with James Irwin for roadway improvements to the first 1,284 feet of Stinson Road south of 
West Lucas Road and appropriating funds in an amount not to exceed $596,577.62 (95% of 
$627,976.45 - the cost of the roadway improvements) from cash account 11-1009 General 
Fund Roadway Impact Fees in the amount of $44,000 and the remainder $552,577.62 from 
General Fund Reserves to account 21-8210-491-325 Stinson Road Realignment. 
 
Background Information  
 
This project is located on the south side of West Lucas Road and north of Stinson Road, between 
505 West Lucas Road and 685 West Lucas Road. The property is currently zoned Residential 2-
acre (R-2) and has an approved preliminary plat. 
 
As part of the project, Stinson Road will be realigned, and a concrete road will be built to replace 
the existing asphalt pavement. The owner will construct roadway facilities that consist of 
replacing and realigning the existing Stinson Road (approximately 1,284 feet). The City will be 
responsible for its proportional share of roadway improvements, in this case the City’s 
responsibility is 95%.  
 
The total seven-day traffic count was 14,142 trips, creating a daily average of 2,020 trips. The 
number of lots proposed is 10, with an average trip count of 10 trips for each lot, per day creating 
100 trips per day. 100/2020 = .0495, the City’s proportional share is 95%.  Staff does have a 
concern that all traffic on Stinson Road was included in the analysis, and some traffic may 
continue to use the existing section of road. After the Comprehensive Plan was adopted in 2017, 
the City spent approximately $245,000 from the reimbursement of road improvements to 
improve the intersection of Stinson Road and West Lucas Road. 

In the Development Agreement, Article 3, Section 2, City Cost Participation for Roadway 
Improvements states: The City agrees to participate in the costs of the Roadway Improvements 
as set forth herein. The City's participation in the cost of the construction of the Roadway 
Improvements shall be 95% of the actual Roadway Improvement Costs (the "City Participation 
Amount"). Within thirty (30) days after completion of the Roadway Improvements and 
acceptance thereof by the City, the City shall pay to the Owner an amount equal to the City 
Participation Amount. The Owner agrees to competitively bid the Roadway Improvements to at 
least three (3) contractors. 
 
 
 



Item No. 05 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

March 3, 2022 

Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
1. Proposed Development Agreement 
2. Sealed Traffic counts 
3. Opinion of Probable Cost, On-Site Improvements 
4. General Fund Roadway Impact Fee Schedule 
5. General Fund Reserve Schedule 

 
 

Budget/Financial Impact  
 
The City’s participation cost would include the following: 
 

• $552,577.62 funding from General Fund Reserves 
• $44,000 funding from cash account 11-1009 General Fund Roadway Impact Fees 

 
Recommendation  
 
Staff recommends approving the attached development agreement with one change: 
 

1. Use $44,000 from General Fund Roadway Impact Fees for a portion of the 
reimbursement. 
 

Motion  
 
I make a motion to approve/deny authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and enter into a 
Development Agreement with James Irwin for roadway improvements to the first 1,284 feet 
of Stinson Road south of West Lucas Road and appropriating funds in an amount not to 
exceed $596,577.62 (95% of $627,976.45 - the cost of the roadway improvements) from cash 
account 11-1009 General Fund Roadway Impact Fees in the amount of $44,000 and the 
remainder $552,577.62 from General Fund Reserves to account 21-8210-491-325 Stinson 
Road Realignment. 



 
PAGE 1 CITY OF LUCAS AND JAMES IRWIN 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT  
 

STATE OF TEXAS  § 
    § DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
COUNTY OF COLLIN § 
 

This Development Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made by and between James Irwin (the 
“Owner”) and the City of Lucas, Texas (the “City”). 
 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, Owner owns that certain tract of real property consisting of 22.679 acres, 
more or less, located in the City of Lucas, Collin County, Texas, more particularly described and/or 
depicted on Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein (the “Property”).  Owner intends 
to develop a ten (10) lot residential subdivision on the Property; and 
 

WHEREAS, Owner has agreed to (i) dedicate a portion of the Property to the City to allow 
Stinson Road to be extended north through the Property so that it intersects with W. Lucas Road, 
as generally depicted on Exhibit B attached hereto and incorporated herein (the “Dedication 
Area”) and (ii) construct and install within the Dedication Area a variable width public road (the 
“Roadway Improvements”); and 

 
WHEREAS, Texas Local Government Code §212.071, as amended, authorizes 

municipalities to participate in the Owner’s costs of construction of public improvements related 
to the development of subdivisions within the municipality without compliance with Chapter 252 
of the Texas Local Government Code, as amended; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements herein 
contained, City and Owner agree as follows: 
 

Article 1 
Term 

 
This Agreement shall commence on the last date all the parties have executed this 

Agreement (“Effective Date”) and shall terminate on the date (“Expiration Date”) that is the earlier 
date of (1) the expiration of one (1) year after City acceptance of the Roadway Improvements; or 
(2) the date the Owner has fully satisfied all of the terms and conditions herein; or (3) unless sooner 
terminated herein. 
 

Article 2 
Definitions 

 
For the purposes of this Agreement, each of the following terms shall have the meanings 

set forth herein unless the context clearly requires otherwise: 
 

2.01  “Approved Plans” means the plans and specifications for the Roadway 
Improvements and Intersection Improvements approved by the City Manager of the City of Lucas, 
or designee. The Approved Plans shall be in substantial conformance with the preliminary plans 



 
PAGE 2 CITY OF LUCAS AND JAMES IRWIN 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT  
 

submitted by the Owner and attached as Exhibit C, and the approval shall not be unreasonably 
withheld. 
 

2.02  “City Manager” means the City Manager of the City of Lucas, or designee. 
 

2.03  “Commencement of Construction” means (i) preparation and approval of the 
approved plan, (ii) issuance by all applicable governmental authorities of necessary permits for the 
construction of the Roadway Improvements, (iii) commencement of grading for the Roadway 
Improvements pursuant to Approved Plans, (iv) commencement of construction of the Roadway 
Improvements pursuant to Approved Plans, and (v) issuance by all applicable governmental 
authorities of necessary permits for construction of the Roadway Improvements pursuant to 
Approved Plans. 
 

2.04  “Completion of Construction” means that (i) the Roadway Improvements have 
been substantially completed in accordance with the Approved Plans, (ii) a certificate of 
substantial completion has been issued by the general contractor(s) and engineer(s)/architect(s) for 
the Roadway Improvements, and a copy of such certificate has been delivered to the City, and (iii) 
the Roadway Improvements have been accepted in writing by the City, which the City agrees to 
do within ten (10) days after receipt of request therefore as long as the Roadway Improvements 
have been constructed substantially in accordance with the Approved Plans. 
 

2.05  “Effective Date” shall mean the last date of execution of this Agreement. 
 

2.06  “Event of Bankruptcy or Insolvency” shall mean insolvency, appointment of 
receiver for any part of Owner's property and such appointment is not terminated within ninety 
(90) days after such appointment is initially made, any general assignment for the benefit of 
creditors, or the commencement of any proceeding under any bankruptcy or insolvency laws by 
or against Owner and such proceeding is not dismissed within ninety (90) days after filing thereof. 
 

2.07  “Force Majeure” shall mean any contingency or cause beyond the reasonable 
control of Owner, as applicable, including, without limitation, acts of God or the public enemy, 
war riot, civil commotion, insurrection, adverse weather, government or de facto governmental 
action or inaction (unless caused by negligence or omissions of Owner), fires, explosions or floods, 
strikes, slowdowns or work stoppages, shortage of materials and labor, or delays by the City. 
 

Article 3 
Roadway Improvements 

 
3.01 Construction of Roadway Improvements. Owner agrees to design and install the 

Roadway Improvements in accordance with the applicable standards, ordinances and regulations 
adopted by the City (“City Standards”). The Owner shall submit plans for the design and 
construction of the Roadway Improvements (“Construction Plans”) to the City for review and 
approval by the City Manager. The Construction Plans shall include the estimated cost of design 
and installation of the Roadway Improvements. Subject to extension for delays caused by events 
of Force Majeure and to the City’s approval of the Approved Plans, Owner agrees to construct the 
Roadway Improvements. The parties acknowledge and agree that the City and Owner have no 



 
PAGE 3 CITY OF LUCAS AND JAMES IRWIN 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT  
 

obligation to condemn or pay any sum of money in connection with the dedication of right-of-way 
except as otherwise provided herein. The Roadway Improvements shall be constructed within the 
Dedication Area. The Owner agrees and covenants to cause commencement of the Roadway 
Improvements on or before April 1, 2022, and to cause completion of construction thereof within 
six (6) months thereafter. 

 
3.02  City Cost Participation for Roadway Improvements. The City agrees to 

participate in the costs of the Roadway Improvements as set forth herein. The City’s participation 
in the cost of the construction of the Roadway Improvements shall be 95% of the actual Roadway 
Improvement Costs (the “City Participation Amount”), provided, however, that the City 
Participation Amount will not exceed $596,577.62. Within thirty (30) days after Completion of 
the Construction of the Roadway Improvements and acceptance thereof by the City, the City shall 
pay to the Owner an amount equal to the City Participation Amount. The Owner has already 
completed the process of competitively bidding the Roadway Improvements and received bids 
from three (3) contractors, a breakdown of which is attached hereto as Exhibit D (the “Bids”).  In 
no case shall the City Participation Amount to the Roadway Improvements exceed thirty percent 
(30%) of the actual costs of design, engineering, site preparation and construction of any 
improvements, including buildings or the Roadway Improvements themselves, on the Property as 
required by the development regulations, whether constructed by Owner or another party ("the 
Development Infrastructure"), unless the contracts for construction of the Development 
Infrastructure have been procured and entered into in compliance with the applicable competitive 
sealed bid procedures set forth in Chapter 252 of the Texas Local Government Code, as amended. 
 

Article 4 
Notice 

 
Any notice to be given or to be served upon a Party hereto in connection with this 

Agreement must be in writing and may be given by hand delivery or by certified or registered mail 
and shall be deemed to have been given and received two (2) business days after a certified or 
registered letter containing such notice, properly addressed with postage prepaid, is deposited in 
the United States mail, and if given otherwise than by certified or registered mail, it shall be 
deemed to have been given and delivered to and received by the Party (or such Party's agent or 
representative) to whom it is addressed when actually received by the intended recipient. Such 
notice shall be given to the Parties hereto at the address set forth below. Any Party hereto may, at 
any time by giving two (2) days written notice to the other parties, designate any other address in 
substitution of the foregoing address to which such notice shall be given. 
 
If notice to Owner: 
 
James Irwin 
________________________ 
________________________ 
________________________ 
 

With a copy to: 
 
Chris Zillmer 
Abernathy, Roeder, Boyd & Hullett, P.C. 
1700 Redbud Blvd., Suite 300 
McKinney, Texas 75069 

 
  



 
PAGE 4 CITY OF LUCAS AND JAMES IRWIN 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT  
 

If notice to City: 
 
Joni Clarke, City Manager 
City of Lucas, Texas 
665 Country Club Road 
Lucas, Texas 75002 
 
 

With a copy to: 
 
Joseph J. Gorfida, Jr., City Attorney 
Nichols, Jackson, Dillard,  
   Hager & Smith, LLP 
500 North Akard Street 
1800 Ross Tower 
Dallas, Texas 75201 

 
Article 5 

Termination 
 

This Agreement shall terminate upon the earliest to occur of the following: 
 
(a) the written agreement of the parties; 
(b) the Expiration Date; 
(c) the election by either party in the event the other party breaches any of the terms or 

conditions of this Agreement and such breach is not cured within thirty (30) days 
after written notice thereof to the breaching party; 

(d) the election by the City if the Owner suffers an Event of Bankruptcy or Insolvency; 
(e) the election by the City, if any Impositions owed to the City or the State of Texas 

by the Owner shall become delinquent (provided, however the Owner retains the 
right to timely and properly protest and contest any such Impositions); and 

(f) the election by the City, if any subsequent Federal or State legislation or any 
decision of a court of competent jurisdiction declares or renders this Agreement 
invalid, illegal or unenforceable. 

 
Article 6 

Miscellaneous 
 

6.01 Assignment of Agreement. This Agreement may not be assigned by Owner 
without the prior written consent of City which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, 
conditioned or delayed. This Agreement may not be assigned, in whole or in part, by City. 
 

6.02 Venue. This Agreement shall be construed under and in accordance with the laws 
of the State of Texas and is specifically performable in Collin County, Texas. Exclusive venue 
shall be in state district court in Collin County, Texas. 
 

6.03 Savings/Severability. In case any one or more provisions contained in this 
Agreement shall be for any reason held invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such 
invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision hereof, and it is the 
intention of the Parties to this Agreement that in lieu of each provision that is found to be illegal, 
invalid, or unenforceable, a provision be added to this Agreement which is legal, valid, and 
enforceable and is as similar in terms as possible to the provision found to be illegal, invalid, or 
unenforceable. 
 



 
PAGE 5 CITY OF LUCAS AND JAMES IRWIN 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT  
 

6.04 Authority. Each of the Parties represents and warrants to the other that they have 
the full power and authority to enter into and fulfill the obligations of this Agreement. 
 

6.05 Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the Parties 
with respect to the matters contained herein and may not be modified or terminated except upon 
the provisions hereof or by the mutual written agreement of the Parties to this Agreement. 
 

6.06 Consideration. This Agreement is executed by the Parties hereto without coercion 
or duress and for substantial consideration, the sufficiency of which is forever confessed. 

6.07 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in a number of identical 
counterparts, each of which will be deemed an original for all purposes. 
 

6.08 Representations. Each signatory represents this Agreement has been read by the 
Party for which this Agreement is executed, and that such Party has had an opportunity to confer 
with its legal counsel. 
 

6.09 Miscellaneous Drafting Provisions. This Agreement shall be deemed drafted 
equally by all parties hereto. The language of all parts of this Agreement shall be construed as a 
whole according to its fair meaning, and any presumption or principle that the language herein is 
to be construed against any Party shall not apply. Headings in this Agreement are for the 
convenience of the Parties and are not intended to be used in construing this document. 
 

6.10 Binding Effects. This Agreement will be binding upon and inure to the benefit of 
the Parties hereto and their respective heirs, executors, administrators, legal representatives, 
successors, and authorized assigns. This Agreement only inures to the benefit of, and may only be 
enforced by, the Parties and their respective heirs, executors, administrators, legal representatives, 
assignees, lender, successors, and City. No other person or entity is a third-party beneficiary of 
this Agreement. 
 

6.11 No Joint Venture. It is acknowledged and agreed by the Parties that the terms 
hereof are not intended to and shall not be deemed to create a partnership or joint venture among 
the Parties, or to cause City to be deemed to be a constituent partner of the Owner. 
 

6.12 Recordation of Agreement. A copy of this Agreement shall be recorded in the 
Deed Records of Collin County, Texas. THIS AGREEMENT AND ALL OF ITS TERMS, 
CONDITIONS, AND PROVISIONS IS AND SHALL CONSTITUTE A RESTRICTION AND 
CONDITION UPON THE PROJECT AND ALL PORTIONS THEREOF AND A COVENANT 
RUNNING WITH THE PROJECT AND ALL PORTIONS THEREOF, AND IS AND SHALL 
BE BINDING UPON OWNER AND ALL OF ITS HEIRS, SUCCESSORS, AND ASSIGNS 
AND THE FUTURE OWNERS OF THE PROPERTY AND ANY PORTION THEREOF; 
PROVIDED, HOWEVER, THIS AGREEMENT SHALL NOT CONSTITUTE AN 
OBLIGATION OF OR BE DEEMED A RESTRICTION OR ENCUMBRANCE WITH 
RESPECT TO ANY FINAL PLATTED RESIDENTIAL LOT UPON WHICH A COMPLETED 
HOME HAS BEEN CONSTRUCTED. 
 



 
PAGE 6 CITY OF LUCAS AND JAMES IRWIN 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT  
 

6.13 Multiple Counterparts and Duplicate Originals. This Agreement may be 
executed in any number of multiple counterparts and/or duplicate originals, each of which shall be 
deemed an original and all of which considered together shall be deemed one and the same 
Agreement. 
 

6.14  THIS SECTION SHALL SURVIVE THE TERMINATION OF THIS 
AGREEMENT. 
 

PARTIES’ ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF LUCAS’ COMPLIANCE WITH 
FEDERAL AND STATE CONSTITUTIONS, STATUTES AND CASE LAW, AND 
FEDERAL, STATE AND LOCAL ORDINANCES, RULES AND REGULATIONS; AND 
OWNER’S WAIVER AND RELEASE OF CLAIMS FOR OBLIGATIONS IMPOSED BY 
THIS AGREEMENT AND OTHER DEVELOPMENT OBLIGATIONS IMPOSED BY 
THE CITY UPON THE DEVELOPMENT. 
 

OWNER ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT: 
 

I. THE CONVEYANCES, DEDICATIONS, EASEMENTS AND/OR 
PAYMENT OF MONEY REQUIRED BY THIS AGREEMENT AND THE 
OTHER DEVELOPMENT OBLIGATIONS IMPOSED BY THE CITY 
UPON THE PROJECT TO BE PERFORMED BY OWNER, IN WHOLE OR 
IN PART, DO NOT CONSTITUTE A: 
 
(A) TAKING UNDER THE TEXAS OR UNITED STATES 

CONSTITUTION; 
 
(B) VIOLATION OF THE TEXAS WATER CODE, AS IT EXISTS OR 

MAY BE AMENDED; 
 
(C) NUISANCE; AND/OR 
 
(D) CLAIM FOR DAMAGES AND/OR REIMBURSEMENT AGAINST 

THE CITY FOR A VIOLATION OF ANY FEDERAL AND/OR 
STATE CONSTITUTION, STATUTE AND/OR CASE LAW 
AND/OR FEDERAL, STATE AND/OR LOCAL ORDINANCE, 
RULE AND/OR REGULATION. 

  
II. THE AMOUNT OF OWNER’S FINANCIAL OR INFRASTRUCTURE 

CONTRIBUTION (AFTER RECEIVING ALL CONTRACTUAL OFFSETS, 
CREDITS AND REIMBURSEMENTS, IF ANY) AGREED TO IN THIS 
AGREEMENT IS ROUGHLY PROPORTIONAL TO THE DEMAND 
THAT THE PROJECT PLACES ON THE CITY’S INFRASTRUCTURE. 

 
III. OWNER HEREBY AGREES THAT ANY INFRASTRUCTURE THAT IT 

CONSTRUCTS OR PROPERTY THAT IT CONVEYS TO THE CITY 
PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT AND THE OTHER DEVELOPMENT 



 
PAGE 7 CITY OF LUCAS AND JAMES IRWIN 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT  
 

OBLIGATIONS IMPOSED BY THE CITY UPON THE PROJECT IS 
ROUGHLY PROPORTIONAL TO THE BENEFIT RECEIVED BY 
OWNER FOR SUCH INFRASTRUCTURE AND LAND, AND OWNER 
HEREBY WAIVES ANY CLAIMS THEREFORE THAT IT MAY HAVE. 
OWNER FURTHER ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT ALL 
PREREQUISITES TO SUCH A DETERMINATION OF ROUGH 
PROPORTIONALITY HAVE BEEN MET, AND THAT ANY VALUE 
RECEIVED BY THE CITY RELATIVE TO SAID INFRASTRUCTURE 
AND CONVEYANCE ARE RELATED BOTH IN NATURE AND EXTEND 
TO THE IMPACT OF THE DEVELOPMENT OF THE PROJECT ON THE 
CITY’S INFRASTRUCTURE.  OWNER AND THE CITY FURTHER 
AGREE TO WAIVE AND RELEASE ALL CLAIMS ONE MAY HAVE 
AGAINST THE OTHER RELATED TO ANY AND ALL ROUGH 
PROPORTIONALITY AND INDIVIDUAL DETERMINATION 
REQUIREMENTS MANDATED BY THE UNITED STATES SUPREME 
COURT IN DOLAN V. CITY OF TIGARD, 512 U.S. 374 (1994), AND ITS 
PROGENY, AS WELL AS ANY OTHER REQUIREMENTS OF A NEXUS 
BETWEEN DEVELOPMENT CONDITIONS AND THE PROJECTED 
IMPACT OF THE PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE. 

 
(IV) OWNER RELEASES THE CITY FROM ANY AND ALL CLAIMS OR 

CAUSES OF ACTION BASED ON EXCESSIVE OR ILLEGAL 
EXACTIONS. 

 
(V) OWNER WAIVES ANY CLAIM FOR DAMAGES AND/OR 

REIMBURSEMENT AGAINST THE CITY FOR A VIOLATION OF ANY 
FEDERAL AND/OR STATE CONSTITUTION, STATUTE AND/OR CASE 
LAW AND/OR FEDERAL, STATE AND/OR LOCAL ORDINANCE, RULE 
AND/OR REGULATION. 

 
(VI) THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL SURVIVE THE TERMINATION OF THIS 

AGREEMENT. 
 
 

 
(Signature Page Follows)  



 
PAGE 8 CITY OF LUCAS AND JAMES IRWIN 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT  
 

EXECUTED in duplicate originals this ______ day of _____________, 2022. 
 

CITY: 
 

CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS 
 
 

By: ____________________________________ 
Name: ____________________________________ 
Title: ____________________________________ 

 
 
Approved as to Form 
 
 
By:        
 Joseph J. Gorfida, Jr. 
 (02-24-2022: FINAL TM 127991) 
 
 
 
STATE OF TEXAS  § 
    § 
COUNTY OF COLLIN § 
 
This instrument was acknowledged before me on the _____ day of _____________, 2022, by 
_____________________, _________________ of the City of Lucas, Texas, on its behalf. 
 
 
              
       Notary Public – State of Texas 
 
  



 
PAGE 9 CITY OF LUCAS AND JAMES IRWIN 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT  
 

EXECUTED in duplicate originals this ______ day of _____________, 2022. 
 

OWNER: 
 
 
      By: ____________________________________ 
       James Irwin 
         
 
STATE OF TEXAS  § 
    § 
COUNTY OF COLLIN § 
 
This instrument was acknowledged before me on the _____ day of _____________, 2022, by 
James Irwin. 
 
 
              
       Notary Public – State of Texas 
 
 



PAGE 1 EXHIBIT “A” 
CITY OF LUCAS AND JAMES IRWIN 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT  

 

Exhibit “A” 
The Property 

 

 
 



PAGE 1 EXHIBIT “B” 
CITY OF LUCAS AND JAMES IRWIN 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT  

 

Exhibit “B” 
The Dedication Area 

 

 



PAGE 1 EXHIBIT “C” 
CITY OF LUCAS AND JAMES IRWIN 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT  

 

Exhibit “C” 
The Preliminary Plans 

 

 



PAGE 1 EXHIBIT “D” 
CITY OF LUCAS AND JAMES IRWIN 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT  

 

Exhibit “D” 
The Bids 

 

 



  
 
 

 
 

 
www.dynamictraffic.com 

 
Lake Como, NJ  •  Chester, NJ  •  Toms River, NJ  •  Newark, NJ  •  Newtown, PA  •  Philadelphia, PA 

Bethlehem, PA  •  Allen, TX  •  Houston, TX  •  Austin, TX  •  Delray Beach, FL 

Dynamic Traffic, LLC 
714 S. Greenville Avenue,        

Suite 100, Allen, TX 75002 
T. 732.681.0760 

 

December 8, 2021 

 

 

 

City of Lucas 

Development Services 

665 Country Club 

Lucas, TX  75002 

 

Attn:  Joseph Hilbourn 

 

RE: Traffic Counts 

 Lee Creek Estates  

West Lucas Road (FM 1378) 

       City of Lucas, Collin County, Texas 

3943-99-001T 

  

 

 

Dear Mr. Hilbourn: 

 

Dynamic Traffic has conducted traffic counts in support of the above referenced project in order to quantify the 

amount of “cut-thru” traffic that would utilize the proposed roadway to travel between Stinson Road and West 

Lucas Road.  This traffic count data was collected via the installation of Automatic Traffic Recorders (ATR’s) 

placed along Stinson Road just east of La Cantera Drive.  The ATR’s were placed for the period of one (1) week 

from Friday, August 27th to Thursday, September 2nd, 2021 and the traffic data is attached.  It is anticipated that 

the ATR’s will be replaced subsequent to the project being completed for another week to determine the volume 

of existing traffic that will use the proposed roadway.  This data and analysis will be provided upon completion 

of the development. 

 

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions or comments on the above. 

 

Sincerely,  

 

Dynamic Traffic, LLC 

 

 

 

Justin Taylor, PE, PTOE 

Principal 

TX PE License #118486 

 

 



Page 1

Locations: Stinson Rd
Cross Street: E of La Cantera Dr
Town/County: Lucas/Collin
Job #: 3493-99-001T

 
 

Site Code: 
Station ID: 

Latitude: 0' 0.0000 Undefined

Dynamic Traffic, LLC
714 S. Greenville Avenue, Suite 100

Allen, TX 75002
732-681-0760

Start 23-Aug-21 Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat Sun Week Average
Time NB SB NB SB NB SB NB SB NB SB NB SB NB SB NB SB

12:00 AM * * * * * * * * 1 4 3 9 2 6 2 6
01:00 * * * * * * * * 1 1 1 5 1 2 1 3
02:00 * * * * * * * * 0 0 0 2 2 1 1 1
03:00 * * * * * * * * 1 1 2 1 0 0 1 1
04:00 * * * * * * * * 1 0 1 2 2 0 1 1
05:00 * * * * * * * * 9 5 4 11 3 2 5 6
06:00 * * * * * * * * 28 10 9 8 5 0 14 6
07:00 * * * * * * * * 116 92 29 15 14 6 53 38
08:00 * * * * * * * * 71 67 34 24 21 16 42 36
09:00 * * * * * * * * 67 62 53 51 35 26 52 46
10:00 * * * * * * * * 74 58 52 60 50 30 59 49
11:00 * * * * * * * * 92 81 51 58 25 36 56 58

12:00 PM * * * * * * * * 50 69 53 79 40 70 48 73
01:00 * * * * * * * * 61 75 50 59 51 74 54 69
02:00 * * * * * * * * 41 79 26 71 26 61 31 70
03:00 * * * * * * * * 52 106 46 69 51 52 50 76
04:00 * * * * * * * * 60 176 51 67 26 48 46 97
05:00 * * * * * * * * 67 239 33 72 39 74 46 128
06:00 * * * * * * * * 58 143 41 59 31 61 43 88
07:00 * * * * * * * * 42 48 33 46 23 33 33 42
08:00 * * * * * * * * 29 39 16 41 45 34 30 38
09:00 * * * * * * * * 12 28 17 36 20 13 16 26
10:00 * * * * * * * * 17 29 5 20 5 6 9 18
11:00 * * * * * * * * 8 15 6 15 3 6 6 12
Total 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 958 1427 616 880 520 657 699 988

Day 0 0 0 0 2385 1496 1177 1687
AM Peak - - - - - - - - 07:00 07:00 09:00 10:00 10:00 11:00 10:00 11:00

Vol. - - - - - - - - 116 92 53 60 50 36 59 58
PM Peak - - - - - - - - 17:00 17:00 12:00 12:00 13:00 13:00 13:00 17:00

Vol. - - - - - - - - 67 239 53 79 51 74 54 128



Page 2 
 
Locations: Stinson Rd
Cross Street: E of La Cantera Dr
Town/County: Lucas/Collin
Job #: 3493-99-001T

 
 
 

 
Site Code: 
Station ID: 

Latitude: 0' 0.0000 Undefined

Dynamic Traffic, LLC
714 S. Greenville Avenue, Suite 100

Allen, TX 75002
732-681-0760

Start 30-Aug-21 Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat Sun Week Average
Time NB SB NB SB NB SB NB SB NB SB NB SB NB SB NB SB

12:00 AM 5 2 1 1 2 2 3 5 * * * * * * 3 2
01:00 1 4 0 2 0 3 0 1 * * * * * * 0 2
02:00 1 1 1 0 1 4 0 1 * * * * * * 1 2
03:00 2 1 3 2 1 1 1 0 * * * * * * 2 1
04:00 5 0 5 0 2 0 4 0 * * * * * * 4 0
05:00 16 3 11 3 8 3 9 0 * * * * * * 11 2
06:00 22 21 25 13 34 18 21 16 * * * * * * 26 17
07:00 110 73 72 63 113 80 74 89 * * * * * * 92 76
08:00 64 73 77 75 79 72 65 65 * * * * * * 71 71
09:00 55 57 61 61 57 58 56 64 * * * * * * 57 60
10:00 47 35 54 47 35 58 51 42 * * * * * * 47 46
11:00 42 58 39 60 62 50 48 64 * * * * * * 48 58

12:00 PM 42 68 40 61 65 76 53 72 * * * * * * 50 69
01:00 51 76 54 81 51 72 45 68 * * * * * * 50 74
02:00 51 53 58 55 58 78 60 78 * * * * * * 57 66
03:00 49 106 42 77 54 94 46 113 * * * * * * 48 98
04:00 60 161 51 190 51 152 51 183 * * * * * * 53 172
05:00 53 219 70 279 73 262 91 308 * * * * * * 72 267
06:00 63 156 53 261 50 180 61 155 * * * * * * 57 188
07:00 30 61 42 82 22 62 33 70 * * * * * * 32 69
08:00 23 52 23 54 33 44 19 63 * * * * * * 24 53
09:00 20 26 14 23 16 39 11 25 * * * * * * 15 28
10:00 5 12 6 7 10 10 8 19 * * * * * * 7 12
11:00 2 7 4 6 5 8 5 7 * * * * * * 4 7
Total 819 1325 806 1503 882 1426 815 1508 0 0 0 0 0 0 831 1440

Day 2144 2309 2308 2323 0 0 0 2271
AM Peak 07:00 07:00 08:00 08:00 07:00 07:00 07:00 07:00 - - - - - - 07:00 07:00

Vol. 110 73 77 75 113 80 74 89 - - - - - - 92 76
PM Peak 18:00 17:00 17:00 17:00 17:00 17:00 17:00 17:00 - - - - - - 17:00 17:00

Vol. 63 219 70 279 73 262 91 308 - - - - - - 72 267
  
  

Comb.
Total

2144 2309 2308 2323 2385 1496 1177 3958

  
ADT ADT 2,020 AADT 2,020



PRELIMINARY OPINION OF

PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COST

FOR

Lee Creek Estates
Lucas, Collin County, Texas

12/30/2021

DECPC #:  3943-99-001

Prepared by:

DYNAMIC ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS, P.C.

714 S. Greenville Avenue, Suite 100 Allen, TX  75002

Prepared By: RA

Checked By: JTE

QUANTITY UNIT UNIT COST TOTAL COST

SITE CLEARING

Clearing & Grubbing (Greater Than 1/2 an Acre) 1.5 AC $14,167.00 $21,518.81

Subtotal $21,518.81

SITE DEMOLITION

Sawcutting 147 LF $10.00 $1,465.00

Subtotal $1,465.00

FINAL GRADING

Grading at Pavement 34,281 SF $2.31 $79,189.11

Subtotal $79,189.11

EARTHWORK 

Strip Topsoil 408 CY $4.00 $1,633.70

Respread Topsoil (with stockpiled topsoil) 214 CY $7.50 $1,606.02

Import & Place Fill 5,872 CY $23.15 $135,930.60

Subtotal $139,170.32

SITE WORK

6" Reinforced Concrete Pavement (#3 Bars @ 18" O.C.E.W) 635 CY $417.50 $265,042.92

8"  Lime Treated Subgrade 846 CY $35.15 $29,752.52

Subtotal $294,795.44

STRIPING & SIGNAGE

Traffic Control Measures 1 EA $12,000.00 $12,000.00

Subtotal $12,000.00

STORM DRAINAGE

5x5 Concrete box culvert 171 LF $451.00 $77,121.00

Concrete Headwall & Footing 2 EA $2,850.00 $5,700.00



Traffic Guardrail 435 LF $100.00 $43,500.00

9” – 12” Grouted Rock Rip-Rap with filter fabric 1,880 SF $12.00 $22,560.00

Subtotal $148,881.00

WATER

8" PVC 1,448 LF $80.00 $115,840.00

6" PVC 28 LF $60.00 $1,680.00

Hydrant, Valve & Stem 2 EA $6,000.00 $12,000.00

8" Bend w/ Thrust Block 5 EA $700.00 $3,500.00

8" Valve 9 EA $3,000.00 $27,000.00

8” water line bore 67 LF $750.00 $50,250.00

1" Service Lines 10 EA $1,500.00 $15,000.00

Connections to Existing line 2 EA $6,250.00 $12,500.00

Subtotal $237,770.00

FRANCHISE UTILITIES

3-4" PVC Telecommunication Conduits 1,050 LF $136.00 $142,800.00

3-6" Underground Electric Conduits 1,057 LF $162.00 $171,234.00

2" PVC Natural Gas Main 1,110 LF $75.00 $83,250.00

Subtotal $397,284.00

SOIL EROSION & SED. CONTROL

Silt Fence 1377 LF $1.40 $1,927.80

Construction Entrance 1 EA $2,500.00 $2,500.00

Concrete Wash-out Area 1 EA $5,500.00 $5,500.00

0

Subtotal $9,927.80

SUBTOTAL: $1,342,001.48

15% CONTINGENCY: $201,300.22

TOTAL: $1,543,301.70

NOTE:

1.)  This preliminary opinion of probable construction cost has been prepared based upon review of

plans titled Engineering Construction Plans for Lee Creek Estates Subdivision as prepared by Dynamic Engineering Consultants, P.C.,

dated 12/17/2021.

2.)  The unit pricing included is appropriate and is based upon available pricing indices or this firms 

historical experience in the general geographical area as a result of same, it is only approximate.  For 

utilization as a budget estimate, same must be updated by current market conditions and other

constructability factors.

3.)  This opinion of probable construction cost excludes costs that may be associated with the

dewatering, unforeseen sub-surface conditions, environmental conditions, earth work, adverse

weather conditions, material requirements, temporary utility installations, electrical transformer costs,

water meter costs, etc.  This estimate is not to be utilized for pro forma or finance purposes.

4) This opinion of probable construction cost is for bonding purposes only.



City of Lucas

General Fund Roadway Impact Fee Schedule

Account 11-1009 General

Beginning Balance 9/30/2021 1,289,717.95$                

FY 21-22 Budgeted Impact Fee Collections 350,000.00$                   

FY 21-22 Capital Project Expenditures:

21-8210-491-127 Winningkoff Phase 2 (168,873.00)$                  

21-8210-491-130 Blondy Jhune Rd Alignment (306,489.00)$                  

Total GF Roadway Impact Fees Remaining 1,164,355.95$                



City of Lucas

General Fund Reserves by Fiscal Year (Unaudited)
Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Projected Projected

2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016 2016-2017  2017-2018 2018-2019 2019-2020 2020-2021 2021-2022

Unassigned Fund Balance per Audit Report 5,867,875$        6,203,973$          7,545,674$         8,774,909$            7,380,496$    7,442,323$       8,524,465$            8,524,465$      8,524,465$            

Adjusted For:

Projected Excess Fund Balance FY 20-21 (Revenue vs. Expense) 1,438,228$       1,438,228$            
Projected Excess Fund Balance FY 21-22 (Revenue vs. Expense) 24,659$                  

Additional Restrictions:

Capital  Project funding approved at  (3-2-17) City Council Meeting (1,385,000)$           

FY 20-21 Brockdale Roadway Improvements carry-over (47,935)$             (102,935)$            (140,335)$           (199,570)$              -$                        (41,349)$           (41,349)$                 
Water Rescue Boat (120,000)$         (120,000)$              
FY 20-21 FD Equipment/bunker gear carry-over (21,379)$           (21,379)$                 
FY 20-21 Energov Software/Hardware carry-over (34,843)$           (34,843)$                 
FY 20-21 -CC 7-1-21 Lemontree drainage carry-over (67,813)$           (67,813)$                 
Reserve for Capital Outlay FY 20-21 (50,000)$              (100,000)$              (50,000)$           (50,000)$                 
Reserve for Capital Outlay FY 21-22 -$                         
CC 11-4-21 Reserves for Claremont Springs Drainage (FY 21-22) (192,025)$              
CC 11-4-21 Reserves for Brookhaven Culvert (FY 21-22) (110,758)$              
CC 12-16-21 Reserves for Water Master Plan (FY 21-22) (30,000)$                 
CC 1-20-22 Reserves for Records Management Scanning (FY 21-22) (26,607)$                 
CC 2-17-22 Reserves for Rimrock Detention Pond Design (FY 21-22) (23,280)$                 
CC 2-17-22 Reserves for Orchard Road Crossing Design (FY 21-22) (32,450)$                 

Reserve Balance Prior to GASB 54 Requirement 5,819,940$        6,101,038$          7,355,339$         7,090,339$            7,380,496$    7,442,323$       8,524,465$            9,627,309$      9,236,848$            

Reserve Balance in Operating Months 16.7 17.1 19.3 16.5 16.9 14.9 17.9 17.8 16

50% Current  Year General Fund Expenditures (6 months) (2,089,807)$       (2,143,890)$         (2,286,670)$        (2,583,535)$           (2,624,410)$   (3,009,319)$      (2,861,041)$           (3,245,588)$     (3,463,246)$           

Reserve Balance After GASB 54  Requirement 3,730,133$        3,957,148$          5,068,669$         4,506,804$            4,756,086$    4,433,005$       5,663,424$            6,381,721$      5,773,602$            

Reserve Balance in Operating Months 10.7 11.1 13.3 10.5 10.9 8.9 11.9 11.8 10

Restricted during Fiscal Year Audit:

Ambulance Donation 100,000$        -$                    -$                        -$                   -$                         

Capital Project Funding approved (3105) 1,385,000$    1,385,000$        613,590$               -$                   -$                         

Restricted Court/Misc (3105.10)(3105.35) 35,473$              45,612$                51,004$               56,820$                  64,031$          77,266$             78,726$                  76,647$            76,647$                  

Restricted Cable Fees (3105.20) 8,256$                12,773$                17,670$               21,843$                  25,318$          28,582$             31,834$                  34,707$            34,707$                  

Brockdale Roadway Improvements (3105.25) 245,054$        285,878$           385,528$               -$                   -$                         

Restricted Impact Fees (3105.30) 770,508$            867,279$              1,116,079$         1,254,213$            1,572,405$    1,785,286$        2,115,802$            1,417,318$       1,291,956$            

Restricted Water Rescue (3105-32) 120,000$          120,000$                

Restricted FD Equipment (3105-34) 16,379$            16,379$                  

Restricted Cares Funding (3105.40) 89,755$                  

Restricted Mass Mutual LOSAP (3105.45) 216,615$               233,592$        252,407$           265,669$               279,043$          279,043$                

Capital Outlay ( $50K per year) (3106) 150,000$        200,000$           250,000$               300,000$          250,000$                

Project Mgmt (3107) 358,290$           70,853$                  -$                   -$                         

Reserve Restricted per Audit Report 814,237$           925,664$             1,184,753$         1,549,491$            3,775,400$    4,372,709$       3,901,757$            2,244,094$      2,068,732$            



Item No. 06  
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

March 3, 2022 
 

Requester: Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn  
  
Agenda Item Request  
 
Consider approval of proposed edits recommended by the Planning and Zoning Commission to 
Chapters 4 and 5 of the City of Lucas Comprehensive Plan and provide direction to staff 
regarding any additional amendments.  
 
Background Information  
 
At the February 10, 2022, Planning and Zoning Commission meeting, the Commission approved 
final edits to Chapters 4 and 5 of the Comprehensive Plan. The redline version of Chapters 4 and 
5 included with this agenda item incorporate amendments made by Planning and Zoning 
Commission as well as staff at the direction of the Commission.  
 
The following table outlines a timeline for review of the Comprehensive Plan by the Planning 
and Zoning Commission. The process to update the Comprehensive Plan will be incorporating 
amendments recommended by the Planning and Zoning Commission and then bringing those 
revisions before City Council. Once the City Council has completed its review and revision 
process, staff will request the two required public hearings to be scheduled.  
 

 
Chapters 

P&Z Meeting 
to Discuss 

Comments to 
City Secretary 

Back to P&Z for 
finalization 

City Council 
Review 

1, 2 and 3 December 9  
complete 

December 21 
complete 

January 13 
complete 

February 17 
complete  

4, 5 and 6 January 13 
complete 

January 24 
complete 

February 10 
Ch 4 & 5 complete 

March 3 
Ch 4 & 5 
only 

7 February 10 
on P&Z agenda 

February 21 March 10 
Ch 6 w/Trail Map 
updates 

April 7 

8 April 14 April 25 May 12  June 2 
 

 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
1. Chapters 4 and 5 of the Comprehensive Plan approved by the Planning and Zoning 

Commission 
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
  



Item No. 06  
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

March 3, 2022 
 

 
Recommendation   
 
NA 
 
Motion  
 
I make a motion to approve the edits recommended by the Planning and Zoning Commission to 
Chapters 4 and 5 of the City of Lucas Comprehensive Plan.  



1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



Item No. 07 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

March 3, 2022 
 

Requester: Mayor Jim Olk  
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Consider changing the start time of City Council meetings from 7:00 pm to 6:00 pm and setting a 
date to begin the new schedule.  
 
Background Information  
 
City Council meetings are currently held on the first and third Thursday of each month beginning 
at 7:00 pm in the Council Chambers at Lucas City Hall. The time duration of meetings can 
depend based on the number of agenda items and discussions. The City Council has the power to 
set the date and time of regular meetings. 
 
Section 3.14(1) of the Home Rule Charter states: 

The City Council shall hold at least one (1) regular meeting each month and as many 
additional meetings as the City Council deems necessary to transact the business of the 
City. The City Council shall fix by ordinance the date and time of the regular meetings. 

 
A proposed new meeting start time at 6:00 pm could allow for greater public participation and 
ensure meetings are conducted in a timely manner. Per the Home Rule Charter, the City Council 
will need to adopt an ordinance specifying the new meeting start time. 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
NA 
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation  
  
If the City Council approves a new meeting start time, staff will bring forward an ordinance for 
approval on the consent agenda at the next meeting. 
 
Motion  
 
I make a motion to approve/deny starting City Council meetings at 6:00 pm, setting a date to begin 
the new schedule on _________________, and prepare an ordinance for consideration. 



 
City of Lucas 

City Council Agenda Request 
March 3, 2022 

 

Item No. 08 

Requestor: Mayor Jim Olk 
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Executive Session. 
 
Pursuant to Section 551.074 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council will convene into 
Executive Session to discuss the evaluation for the City Manager. 
 
Background Information  
 
NA 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
NA 
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation  
 
NA 
 
Motion  
 
NA 



Item No. 09 
City of Lucas 

City Council Agenda Request 
March 3, 2022 

 
 
 
Requester: Mayor Jim Olk 

 
Agenda Item Request  

 
Reconvene from Executive Session and take any action necessary as a result of the Executive 
Session. 

 
 Background Information  

 
NA 

 Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 

NA 

 Budget/Financial Impact  
 

NA 

Recommendation  
 

NA 

Motion  
 

NA 


	00 - Agenda
	01 - Citizen Input
	02 - Community Interest
	03 - Consent Agenda
	04 - Consider Golden Chick Application
	05 - Consider Lee Creek Development Agreement
	06 - Consider Comprehensive Plan Chapters 4 and 5 Edits
	07 - Consider Changing City Council Meeting Start Times
	08 - Executive Session
	09 - Reconvene from Executive Session



